



Patient Information Leaflet



Division of Surgery - INCS



Why am I taking colesevelam?

You are taking colesevelam because you have been diagnosed with a condition called bile acid malabsorption. We have also provided you with an information leaflet explaining this condition. Colesevelam is a bile acid sequestrant medication that works by binding excess bile salts in the small bowel, which helps to prevent watery diarrhoea. Cholestyramine (your previous medication) has either failed to improve your symptoms or given you intolerable side effects.

When you are taking an adequate dose of colesevelam, it should:

- Regulate your bowel function and improve your stool consistency
- Reduce the need to rush to have your bowels open
- Reduce the number of times you need to have your bowels opened
- Give you better control over your bowel function

Colesevelam is a bile acid sequestrant medication which is currently only licensed in the UK to treat high cholesterol by binding bile salts in the bowel.

It can be used for other conditions like bile salt malabsorption. However, because it is only licensed for the treatment of high cholesterol, the drug manufacturer's liability in the UK may be limited if a patient taking the drug for another condition developed a serious problem as a result of taking it.

How much do I need to take?

Most people need to take six tablets a day and find that colesevelam doesn't cause any major problems. Rarely, as the dose builds up, it can cause bad abdominal pains or severe headaches. So we suggest you gradually increase the dosage over the first six days.

How should I take colesevelam?

We would like you to start taking the colesevelam tablets as we describe here until you are taking six tablets a day and then continue on that dose.

We appreciate that it is quite a big tablet but the medication becomes **ineffective if cut** or broken into smaller pieces and if you do this it is also very likely to cause you severe abdominal pain.

The drug manufacturer advises colesevelam should be taken 4 hours before, or after, other drugs – if you take multiple medications, you should speak to your pharmacist about spacing out your medications suitably.

Day 1

Take one colesevelam tablet with your main meal.

Day 2

Take one colesevelam with your main meal and a one tablet with another meal.

Day 3

Take one colesevelam tablet with your breakfast, one tablet with your lunch and one tablet with your evening meal.

Day 4

Take one colesevelam tablet with breakfast, one tablet with lunch and two tablets with your evening meal.

Day 5

Take one colesevelam tablet with breakfast, two tablets with lunch and two tablets with your evening meal.

Day 6

Take two colesevelam tablets with breakfast, two tablets with lunch and two tablets with your evening meal. Continue with this regime.

If you find your symptoms settle and stay normal on a lower dose than six tablets a day, then it is fine to stay on that lower dose and not increase up to six a day. If new severe abdominal pains or headaches begin soon after starting colesevelam, the drug may be causing these symptoms. Reduce the dose to the level at which you last had no problems and then after a couple of days try and increase the dose again more gradually. Most people find they do not have a problem this second time.

If you only have two meals a day, it is fine to take three tablets with each of those two meals rather than the two tablets with each of three meals described above, but we would also advise that you build up the dose slowly over a few days rather than starting on a full dose immediately. If you have built up to a stable dose of colesevelam and find it difficult to remember to take divided doses, you may take all six tablets at one time, once during the day, with a meal.

Are there any side effects?

Colesevelam works much better and has fewer side effects if you take it with meals, rather than on an empty stomach or after meals.

As the tablet is quite a new drug, we have less information about its long term safety. However, as it works in a similar way to the powders (cholestyramine) and is not absorbed from the bowel, it seems likely it will have a similar safety record to the powders. So far, there are no concerns at all about the long-term safety of the tablet.

The potential side effects that are commonly reported are, constipation, flatulence, gastrointestinal discomfort, headache, nausea and vomiting. These potential side effects are the same as those for cholestyramine.

All forms of bile acid sequestrants may lower cholesterol levels when taken for a long time.

There are a further three possible side effects:

• Because colesevelam interferes with the way fat soluble vitamins get into the body, you will need a blood test after three months and then annually to check the levels of vitamins A, D, E and K. If your vitamin levels fall, this can be corrected with a supplement

prescribed by your doctor. Vitamin B12 levels should also be checked annually

- All forms of bile acid sequestrants may lower cholesterol levels when taken for a long time. Although generally beneficial, these medicines can occasionally lead to increases in a different sort of fat (triglycerides) in the blood. Because very high levels of triglycerides may be harmful their levels should also be checked with annually
- Occasionally, colesevelam interacts with other medicines and reduces their effectiveness. This is particularly important if you are taking medicines where a small change in the dose entering the body could be very serious. Such medicines include those taken for epilepsy, to control heart rhythm abnormalities, chemotherapy, thyroxine, combined oral contraceptive pills and blood thinners. So it is important to tell your pharmacist about all other medication that you are taking. Your pharmacist will then be able to help you schedule your timetable for taking all your tablets to reduce the risk of this happening. If you are taking a statin or ezetimibe to lower your cholesterol, these can be taken at the same time as colesevelam

What will happen if I stop taking colesevelam?

You should keep taking the medicines for 10 days at the minimal dose (1 tablet per day) before deciding they do not work. If you stop sooner, you may not have given them enough time. It is very unlikely, having had a diagnosis of bile salt malabsorption, it will improve without treatment. You will need treatment for the rest of your life. If the treatment is effective and you stop it or run out of medicines, your symptoms will almost certainly return either immediately or within a few days.

How soon will my symptoms improve?

It can take several days before diarrhoea starts to improve. It often takes several weeks for unpleasant wind to settle.

The information in this leaflet has been adapted from 2 original documents from the Royal Marsden NHS Foundation Trust with their permission.

Contact details

Should you require further advice or information please contact your prescriber.

Sources of further information

www.lancsteachinghospitals.nhs.uk www.nhs.uk www.patient.co.uk www.accessable.co.uk www.gutscharity.org.uk

All our patient information leaflets are available on our website for patients to access and download

www.lancsteachinghospitals.nhs.uk/patient-information-leaflets

Lancashire Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust is not responsible for the content of external internet sites.

Lancashire Teaching Hospitals is a smoke-free site.

On 31 May 2017 Lancashire Teaching Hospitals became a smoke-free organisation. From that date smoking is not permitted anywhere on any of our premises, either inside or outside the buildings. Our staff will ask you about your smoking status when you come to hospital and will offer you support and advice about stopping smoking including Nicotine Replacement Therapy to help manage your symptoms of withdrawal.

If you want to stop smoking you can also contact the Quit Squad Freephone 0800 328 6297.

Please ask if you would like help in understanding this information. This information can be made available in large print and in other languages.

Cantonese:

如果你希望以另外一種格式接收該資訊,請和我們聯絡,不必猶豫。

Gujarati:

જો તમને આ માહિતી બીજી રચના કે ફોર્મેટમાં મેળવવાની ઈચ્છા હોય, તો કૃપા કરી અમારો સંપર્ક કરતા અચકાશો નહિ.

Hungarian:

Kérjük, vegye fel velünk a kapcsolatot, ha más formában kéri ezt az információt.

Polish:

Jeżeli chciał(a)by Pan/Pani otrzymać niniejsze informacje w innym formacie, prosimy o kontakt.

Punjabi:

ਜੇ ਤੁਸੀਂ ਕਿਸੇ ਹੋਰ ਫਾਰਮੈਟ ਵਿਚ ਇਹ ਜਾਣਕਾਰੀ ਲੈਣਾ ਚਾਹੁੰਦੇ ਹੋ ਤਾਂ ਸਾਡੇ ਨਾਲ ਸੰਪਰਕ ਕਰਨ ਤੋਂ ਨਾ ਝਿਜਕੋ।

Urdu:

اگر آپ اس معلومات کو کسی اور صورت میں حاصل کرنا چاہتے ہیں تو برائے مہرباتی ہم سے رابطہ کرنے میں ہچکچاہٹ محصوس نہ کریں۔

Department: INCS Division: Surgery Production date: February 2021 Review date: February 2024 JR604 v1

Page 7 of 7